
           
 

              

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
 
NORTH CENTRAL LONDON JOINT 
HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 

 Contact: Dominic O’Brien, Principal 
Scrutiny Officer 

Friday 18th March 2022, 10:00 a.m.  
Council Chamber, Islington Council, Town 
Hall, Upper Street, London N1 2UD 

 Direct line: 020 8489 5896  
E-mail:dominic.obrien@haringey.gov.uk 

   
   
 
Councillors: Alison Cornelius and Linda Freedman (Barnet Council), Larraine Revah and 
Paul Tomlinson (Camden Council), Tolga Aramaz and Derek Levy (Enfield Council), Pippa 
Connor (Chair) and Khaled Moyeed (Haringey Council), Tricia Clarke (Vice-Chair) and Osh 
Gantly (Islington Council).  
 
Support Officers: Tracy Scollin, Sola Odusina, Claire Johnson, Dominic O’Brien, 
and Peter Moore. 
 
Quorum: 4 (with 1 member from at least 4 of the 5 boroughs)  
 
AGENDA 
 
1. FILMING AT MEETINGS    
 
 Please note this meeting may be filmed or recorded by the Council for live or 

subsequent broadcast via the Council’s internet site or by anyone attending the 
meeting using any communication method.  Members of the public participating in the 
meeting (e.g. making deputations, asking questions, making oral protests) should be 
aware that they are likely to be filmed, recorded or reported on.  By entering the 
‘meeting room’, you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 
images and sound recordings. 
 
The Chair of the meeting has the discretion to terminate or suspend filming or 
recording, if in his or her opinion continuation of the filming, recording or reporting 
would disrupt or prejudice the proceedings, infringe the rights of any individual, or 
may lead to the breach of a legal obligation by the Council. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
 To receive any apologies for absence.  

 



 

2 

3. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of Urgent Business.  (Late 

items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear.  New items will 
be dealt with under item 11 below). 
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter 

who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered: 
 
(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes 
apparent, and 
(ii) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw 
from the meeting room. 
 
A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending 
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are 
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / QUESTIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B, paragraph 

29 of the Council’s constitution. 
 

6. MINUTES    
 
 Report to follow. 

 
To confirm and sign the minutes of the North Central London Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 28th January 2022 as a correct record. 
 

7. MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES REVIEW  (PAGES 1 - 16)  
 
 To update the Committee on the progress of the mental health services review and 

next steps including the work to develop a set of mental health indicators and to 
agree Borough based implementation plans.  
 

8. COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES REVIEW  (PAGES 17 - 30)  
 
 To update the Committee on the progress of the community health services review 

and next steps. 
 

9. ICS FINANCE/GOVERNANCE    
 



 

3 

 Report to follow. 
 

10. WORK PROGRAMME  (PAGES 31 - 38)  
 
 This paper provides an outline of the 2021-22 work programme for the North Central 

London Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

11. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
12. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 No further meetings in 2021/22. 

 
Dates of 2022/23 meetings TBC.  
 

 
Dominic O’Brien, Principal Scrutiny Officer 
Tel – 020 8489 5896 
Email: dominic.obrien@haringey.gov.uk 

 
Fiona Alderman 
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8HQ 

 
Thursday, 10 March 2022 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



OFFICIAL

Update to Joint HOSC Strategic Review of 

Mental Health Services
18th March 2022

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 7



Contents of This Pack

This pack provides members of JHOSC with an update on  the Mental Health Services review. It should be read in conjunction with the 
Community Services Review. A number of the slides including in this pack on the shape and form of the core service offer are equally 
applicate to Community Services but have not been repeated.

The attached slides set out the process for the review which is running in parallel with the community services in recognition of the 
importance of ensuring as part of the outputs from this work we achieve better support from mental health services for those with a physical 
illness and vice versa. As the review progress we will use our work with Borough Partners to agree how this will be achieved.

The slide on how service user and residents voices and views have been incorporated within the core services offer have not been repeated 
have been integral to this work s mental health. This slide gives examples on how views have been incorporated into the core services offer. 

For mental health we are starting to explore what will be the most effective arrangements for commissioning to deliver a more cohesive 
proactive service that focuses on prevention and addresses inequalities in how services are experienced. Current arrangements need to be 
reviewed in light of these ambitions and in the context of the development of place within the ICS  

Service user and partner engagement will be critical to embed and integrate the core offer with wider place based services. To progress this,  
we are starting a series of discussions with partners including service users and local residents to talk through how the core service offer can 
be best delivered and what for example improved health outcomes would show progress. 

JHOSC members are asked to note the progress of the MH review and next steps including the work to develop a set of Mental 
Health indicators and to agree Borough based implementation plans 

P
age 2



Introduction and Background

NCL CCG has committed to conducting a Strategic Review of Mental Health services to address long-standing inconsistencies in 
service offer, access and outcomes for our population. The Mental health and community services review are running in parallel, with 
integrated workstreams, to ensure that physical and mental health services are joined-up. Both reviews have taken a consistent three 
stage approach.  We have agreed the baseline review findings and the core offer that addresses issues and patient/service user 
feedback and are now working on the plan for implementation.

1. Understand the case for change 

(complete) 

2. Develop the proposition 

(complete)

3. Implementation 

(current)

Aim

• Understand current mental 

health services in NCL and the 

variation between boroughs 

• Develop a powerful case for 

change for mental health 

services; available on the CCG 

website. The next slide provides 

a summary of key findings

Aim

• Clinically-led, population need 

focused, design of a new core offer 

for community and mental health 

services, that will be a consistent 

minimum standard across NCL 

• Impact assessment to understand the 

implications of delivering the core 

offer (benefits and affordability)

Aim

• Engagement with system partners to 

plan for implementation and set 

ourselves up to deliver the core offer

Through this process, a core offer was developed for different age segments of the population and descriptions 

were drafted for each component of the core offer

P
age 3



Programme Governance, Engagement and Co Design

Mental Health Services Review Programme 

Board Membership

➢ CCG including Accountable Officer, Clinical Responsible Officer, 

Governing Body GP and Lay member

➢ Mental Health Trust Chief Executives; BEH/C&I, Tavistock and Portland 

and Whittington Health

➢ Local Authority; Chief Executive, Directors of Adults, Children and 

Public Health

➢ 2 Experts By Experience

➢ Voluntary Sector Representative 

Engagement

➢ Residents Reference Group

➢ Residents Survey

➢ Borough Meetings e.g. with Healthwatch In Islington, Bridge Renewal 

Trust in Haringey

➢ Specific focused meetings e.g. Mencap in Barnet, Camden Parents of 

Children with Special Needs

Co Production and Co Design

➢ Core Service Offer developed with Experts By Experience and some 

Voluntary Sector Reps 

➢ All community providers

➢ All mental health providers

➢ Resident Reference Panel input into core service design 

➢ Workstreams  for Mental Health Core Service Offer (and Long Term 

Plan Delivery) ; service user co design 

P
age 4



Conclusions from Baseline Reviews

The Mental Health Baseline Review has:

• Confirmed and updated the extent of mental health needs, prevalence and implications on life expectancy etc. amongst the NCL population, including an 
update on the ongoing impact of Covid-19

• Confirmed the view that across NCL there is a degree of variation in terms of the mental health services provided, and in access and clinical thresholds to 
services which is not in line with the CCG/ICS principles  

• Confirmed the view that current commissioning and provision are not aligned and set up in a way that could deliver the level of change required to deliver the 
core and consistent service offer that has been co developed and agreed across NCL partners. It notes that Children and Adolescent services are particularly 
fragmented with many statutory and voluntary sector providers all needing to be coordinated

• Acknowledged the extent of the challenge that needs to be addressed as part of the CCG/ICS commitment to improving the life expectancy/health outcomes 
for its local population

• Acknowledges that the baseline review is a reasonable reflection of the experiences of accessing and using mental health services experienced by the 
population of NCL 

• Acknowledges that further discussion is needed to work in a more integrated and collaborative way with community services to recognise the number of local
people with both a mental and a physical health need and the importance of better integrated working  to deliver this

• Sets out that there are challenge and opportunities of an NCL approach to aligning delivering a core and consistent service offer with an ICS aspiration for 
local place based partners to shape the delivery of services in a way that best meets local needs and which supports providers to also work more 
collaboratively to deliver the core service review

• Notes that by continuing to work in the same way it will take the CCG/ICS much longer to bring about the level of transformation that is required to deliver the 
core service offer and that different approaches are needed by both Providers and commissioners to ensure a greater pace to delivery 

• Provides the ‘burning platform’ that drives changes to what and how NCL mental health services are provided and how they are commissioned

P
age 5



Emerging Conclusions from the Mental Health Services Review

Work on the NCL mental service review shows that;

• There is demographic variation and different levels of need across NCL. The pandemic has magnified and worsened existing inequalities 
and has increased the number and acuity of people needing services and support especially young people

• CAMHS services are fragmented with multiple providers both statutory and voluntary sector and might benefit from a more consistent 
approach to leadership oversight and planning and NCL wide activity such as recruitment to key workforce vacancies

• Service provision and investment do not completely correspond to levels of need although they are much closer than for community
services

• Services focus is on a crisis response at the expense of prevention and early intervention

• Core Service offer is a minimum set of service standards that should be delivered consistently across NCL and should support more 
integrated ways of working and improved outcomes

• More work is needed to work in a more integrated and collaborative way with community services to recognise the number of local 
people with both a mental and a physical health need

• There are challenge and opportunities in an NCL approach to delivering a core and consistent service offer with an ICS aspiration for 
local place based partners to shape the delivery of services in a way that best meets local needs

• The new ICS and its ambitions for improved population outcomes provides an opportunity to consider different ways of commissioning 
mental health services to assist this delivery. 

P
age 6



The Core Service Offer for Mental Health 

• The Core Service offer for Mental Health has been co-designed by a range of partners including clinicians, experts by experience, 

local authority reps etc. and focuses on best clinical practice and best local practice and takes a competency based approach to 

delivery

• The core service offer sets out the minimum offer that NCL residents should expect to receive

• The core service offer describes key interfaces, workforce competencies as well as how services are to be accessed

• The core service offer sits within the aspirations of the national Long Term Plan and has a focus on prevention and proactive care 

which was important for local people in their hopes for service redesign

• There should continue to be close alignment in planning the delivery of the core service offer and the LTP 

• To achieve the benefits of the core offer, it needs to be implemented in its entirety

• Assuming funding is agreed, implementation of the core service offer will take approximately three years given a need for thoughtful 

discussion with partners, users etc. on how services respond to core offer, recruitment, training etc. 

P
age 7



The Core Offer – Coordinating Functions
A set of coordinating functions act to support, integrate and navigate care for service users across the layers of the core offer

8

Care coordination 

and case 

management

Trusted holistic 

assessment 

function

Central 

point 

of access

Increasing complexity of need

• Central point of contact at borough or NCL level for initial referrals and contacts with 

local community and MH health services

• Provides telephone and/or email hub which directs referrals or queries to the right 

individual or service

• Accessed by any health or care professionals, by service users and families / carers

• Administrators have access to directory of local services and assets and are able to 

help service users and professionals navigate the wider available support

• Service users have a single up front holistic assessment of their health needs,

functioning, living environment & preferences

• This is conducted by a senior professional with trusted assessor competencies who has 

the trust of the full MDT

• Service users and their families and carers only have to tell their story once

• Service users with complex needs are allocated a clinical case manager. This 

individual leads the development of a holistic care plan and its delivery

• Care coordinators support this through organising MDT meetings and supporting 

service users and their families and carers to navigate health and care appointments

P
age 8



9

How Feedback from Resident Engagement Discussions Has Helped Shape the 
Core Service Offers

Feedback/Comments from resident engagement discussions:

• Both community and mental health services need to improve access.  This 

includes waiting times, time for first contact and ability to communicate -

especially the availability of interpreting services, including British Sign Language.

• Both community and mental health services need to be more dementia friendly 

and think more about those with other needs, especially sensory problems.

• Both community and mental health services need to reduce the number of hand 

offs and make better use of technology to avoid people having to frequently 

repeat their details/stories. 

• Both community and mental health services need to improve communications 

with patients especially when appointments are changed, cancelled etc. and have 

better processes for responding to patient enquiries etc.

• A move to digital was welcomed by some, but there was a strong counter view 

that the digital divide was widening and that health services must offer a mix of 

delivery mechanisms and not just rely on a digital approach.

• All patients wanted services to be personalised and for their care to be 

considered in the context of their lives and circumstances as well as wanting to 

be involved in any decisions on their care.

• Transition planning especially from children to adult services was highlighted as 

problematic and requiring an earlier start than is currently happening.

• Services must be culturally competent and providers need to work with their 

communities to recruit more local people and use their experience and knowledge 

to work more effectively with diverse local populations.

How this feedback has been incorporated into the core services offer

• Core service offers include response times, but we will need to address backlog of 

patients waiting especially in CAMHS. Work has already started in other areas e.g. 

Therapy waiting times in Barnet, or access to autism/ACHD assessments.

• Core service offer designed around central point of access (or SPA) which could 

support better direction for some patients to both NHS and local authority / 

voluntary sector services.

• Core service offer proposes more services with direct access, reducing the need 

for referral.

• Core service offer supports the personalisation agenda with more care plans, case 

managers and greater requirement for patient led decision making.

• Core services offer seeks to be more community based and offer pro-active care 

to reduce number of patient first contact being via A&E or inpatient services etc.

• Core services offer has some integrated working between mental health and 

community services but this needs more discussion as part of thinking through 

how the core offer is delivered at a place level.

• Core offer includes focus on transition planning and development of more 

specific 18-25 services to bridge between CAMHs and adult services.  

• Other feedback for providers included further discussion needed on 

culturally competent services and digital offer, dementia friendly 

approach etc. 

As part of the service reviews the CCG has developed a comms and engagement strategy. Some of the feedback we have received is set out below and how this has been 

incorporated into the core services offer. This work will also feed into our discussions on  the community and MH population health indicators 

P
age 9



Update on Developing an Outcomes Framework to Support Mental Health Services Review 
As part of the mental health services review the CCG in conjunction with its partners including service users plans to agree a set 
of mental health indicators to measure the impact of delivering the core services offer consistently across NCL. This was agreed
as an action at the last MH Review Programme Board 

• The intention is to nestle mental health indicators under the overall population health outcomes and population health improvement 
strategy ( see next slides for high level indicators)

• The intention will be to agree a small number of key indicators ( 3-5 maximum) under each of the 7 outcome headings that well 
demonstrate progress against the key objectives of the community service review

• The intention will be that each MH provider collects the same indicators as part of its contract 

• The indicators will start as a mixture of process indicators e.g. waiting time for treatment, i.e. those currently available but in time 
move to indicators which demonstrate progress  on delivering benefits of core offer e.g. reductions in number of emergency 
admissions, uptake of Improving Access to Psychological therapies for all populations as well as indicators measuring impacts on the 
wider determinates of health such as older people connected and thriving in their local communities i.e. reducing social isolation etc.  

• We are working  with Population health team to find indicators and measures that demonstrate improvements which can then be 
monitored in terms of reductions in inequalities and inequities

• Working with HealthEIntent to collect data and streamline processes for reporting

• These will not be the only set of indicators/KPIs collected but will work along side a range of indicators required  nationally and within 
NCL etc. to monitor and measure performance

Next Steps

We will be working with partners to agree the measures that fulfil  the above set of criteria

P
age 10



11

Proposed principles to developing the NCL Population Health 

outcomes and Population Health Improvement strategy   

High quality of and 

equitable access 

to services

Subsidiarity

Prioritising 

prevention and 

early intervention

Tackling health 

inequalities

Adding value

Sharing 

responsibility and 

accountability 

Empowering 

communities 

Integration and 

doing things 

differently

Maximising use of 

enablers: finance, 

workforce, digital, 

anchor institutions, 

Population Health 

Management 

Co-production and 

personalisation 

Sustainability and 

greener NHS

Draft For Discussion
P

age 11



12

Proposed NCL Population Health outcomes framework 

Every child has the best start in life and no child left 

behind

All children and young people  are supported to have 

good mental and physical health

Reduction in early death from cancer, cardiovascular 

disease and respiratory disease

Reduced unemployment and increase in people 

working in good jobs 

Parity of esteem between mental and physical health

Older people live healthy and  independent lives as 

long as possible

Older people are connected and thriving in their local 

communities 

Start well Live well Age well 

Young people and their families are supported in 

their transition to adult services

Improved maternal health and reduced inequalities in 

perinatal outcomes

Reduced inequalities in infant mortality 

Increased immunisation and new born screening coverage

All children are supported to have good speech language 

and communication skills

Reduction in the number of children and young people 

who are overweight or obese 

Early identification and proactive support for mental 

health conditions

Improved outcomes for children with long 

term conditions

All young people and their families have a good 

experience of their transition to adult services

Reducing prevalence of key risk factors: smoking, alcohol, 

obesity

Early identification and improved treatment of cancer, 

diabetes, high blood pressure, cardiovascular disease and 

respiratory disease

Anchor institutions to employ local people including those 

with mental health illness, physical disability, and learning 

disabilities, and to buy locally including by using social 

value-based commissioning and contracting

Support people to stay in jobs, including mental health and 

musculoskeletal services

Improved physical health in people with serious  mental 

health conditions

Reducing deaths by suicide

Reducing racial and social inequalities in mental health 

outcomes

Ensure that people get timely, appropriate and integrated 

care when they need it and where they need it

Prevent development of frailty with active aging

Improved outcomes for older people with long-term 

conditions, including dementia

Older people have fulfilling and meaningful social life 

Older people are informed well and can easily access 

support for managing financial hardship

DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION
P

age 12



OFFICIAL

Bridging the affordability risk in delivering the 

Mental Health Core Offer

13

Growth moniesSystem savings Efficiency
Opportunities of 

scale

• Core offer delivery 

to have first call on 

new MH investment 

& growth monies 

e.g. use of Mental 

Health Investment 

Standard (MHIS)

• Invest savings from 

inpatient bed day 

activity using

proactive and 

preventative MH 

services

• Reduce number of 

out of area 

placements

• Challenge to 

Providers from 

benchmarking 

opportunities

identified; Funding to 

be identified to 

recycle for core 

services offer

• Collaboration and 

sharing of best 

practice across NCL 

providers including 

use of digital 

solutions

• Delivering some 

services 

collaboratively 

across NCL

• Expected to 

support our 

workforce 

sustainability and 

delivery of small or 

‘fragile’ services

Redistribution of 

resources

• Changing the 

footprint of services 

/ sharing resources 

to effectively 

increase resources 

in areas that need 

investments; 

Provider Review 

between Barnet 

Enfield & Haringey 

and Camden & 

Islington will 

support this work

Built in to current affordability model however focus now 

on how ICS can maximised these
Further Opportunities

P
age 13



OFFICIAL

Funding The Mental Health Core Services Offer

14

To agree funding for the core services offer the CCG and MH Directors of Finance are working together to agree a balanced system plan for 

2022/23. 2022/23 is also year one of the core offer implementation. Work is in progress to ensure that the phasing of core offer delivery is in 

line with the 3 year plan

• There is agreement that nationally allocated funding from the Mental Health Investment Standard (MHIS) and Service Development 

Funding ( SDF) should be used given the overlap of the core service offer and Long Term Plan For Mental Health

• There is a discussion about how Providers should contribute ‘ savings’ from productivity improvements to recycle to fund the core services 

offer; Providers will need to time to find savings but the closer working between BEH and C&I is an opportunity for working differently 

across NCL  

• The closer working of the two largest MH Trusts in NCL also brings other opportunities e.g. the development of a single bed management 

system should help reduce the number of out of area placements and ensure that this funding is used locally

• However despite the use of the MHIS and SDF the increasing demand and especially acuity of services users will require ongoing 

investment from NCL. How this funding is agreed is yet to be determined  

P
age 14



Progress on Implementation Planning

• The core service offer reflects the minimum service offer and incorporates requirements of the MH Long Term Plan

• As part of developing implementation plans we are working on agreement of an outcomes framework. This will sit under and contribute 
to the delivery of the NCL population health  outcomes framework and set out what we want to achieve as the contribution of community 
and mental health services.  

• We are identifying at indictors which can demonstrate progress against out aspiration for preventive and proactive community based 
services as we know this resonates with the feedback with have had from service users and residents as part of our communications and 
engagement strategy.

• As part of our approach to developing a funding plan we have provided a detailed productivity benchmarking report which sets out
information on skill mix and activity details to identify opportunities for greater efficiencies by working together or delivering at scale to 
reinvest into the core offer. 

• For mental health services we are looking at services at scale to address issues with clinical fragility, workforce vacancies and resilience 
and the ability to contribute to efficiency savings. Changes in the provider landscape with BEH & C&I working more closely together will 
bring new opportunities for sharing and working more collaboratively

• To deliver the core service offer and its under pinning aspirations on more preventative and practice care, reducing inequalities and 
moving from a more crisis focused service will require the CCG/ICS to commission in different ways and for Providers to respond 
differently,. How that will be achieved is to be the subject of further discussions with partners. Provider Collaboratives have been mooted 
as one option but there are others that will be explored.

P
age 15



Summary and next steps

• In summary, there is a compelling and powerful case for change underpinning the ambition to deliver a core mental health service offer 

for NCL residents.

• We are working with Providers and partners to look at opportunities for more collaborative working that will support the delivery of the 

core service offer.

• Borough based implementation plans will be developed with borough partnerships once the work on financial planning has concluded. 

Mental Health is a priority in Boroughs and these discussions will be an opportunity to achieve greater integration and coordination 

across different partners.     

• Work is starting to develop an outcomes framework to measure the impact of change and improvements to population outcomes.   

• Implementation plans will include arrangements for monitoring of core offer cost, activity and outcomes to ensure the project remains 

within affordability and delivers planned clinical benefits.

• Service user and partner engagement will be critical to embed and integrate the core offer with wider place based services. To progress 

this,  we are starting a series of discussions with other partners e.g. NCL Experts By Experience group to talk through how the core 

service offer can be best delivered and what for example improved health outcomes would show progress. 

P
age 16



OFFICIAL

Update to Joint HOSC Strategic Review of 

Community Health Services
18th March 2022

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 8



OFFICIAL

Contents of This Pack

2

This pack provides members of JHOSC with an update on  the Community Services review. It should be read in conjunction with the MH 
Services Review. A number of the slides including in the MH pack on the shape and form of the core service offer are equally applicate to 
Community Services but have not been repeated in this pack. 

The attached slides set out the process for the review which is running in parallel with the MH Service review partly in recognition of the 
importance of ensuring as part of the outputs from this work we achieve better support from mental health services for those with a physical 
illness and vice versa. As the review progress we will use our work with Borough Partners to agree how this will be achieved.

The slide on how service user and residents voices and views have been incorporated within the core services offer have not been repeated 
but again apply to the community services offer as well as mental health. 

For community services there are a number of approaches being used to test out the most effective and affordable approach to delivering the 
core service offer e.g. via vertical or horizontal working or through working at scale etc. 

The focus for system leadership during the next stage of review is to conclude the values that can be attributed to pillars of work e.g. system 
efficiency to bridge the affordability gap or options to re-profile the implementation of the core offer and benefits realisation plan to achieve 
this.

Service user and partner engagement will be critical to embed and integrate the core offer with wider place based services. To progress this,  
we are starting a series of discussions with partners including service users and local residents to talk through how the core service offer can 
be best delivered and what for example improved health outcomes would show progress. 

JHOSC members are asked to note the progress of the MH review and next steps including the work to develop a set of Mental 
Health indicators and to agree Borough based implementation plans 

P
age 18



OFFICIAL

Community Services Review Programme Governance, Engagement and Co Design

3

P
age 19



OFFICIAL
4

In scope of the review: NHS funded Community Services (Adult and CYP services delivered outside hospital not as part of an acute spell) delivered by NHS Community Providers, NHS Acute Providers, Private / other Providers (e.g.. VCS), Primary Care

(services that are not part of a Primary Care Core Contract, LCS/DES or similar). Out of scope: Continuing Health Care, Care Providers / Care Homes, NHS Acute Services, Primary Care contracts incl. GMS/PMS and APMS/LCS/LIS/DES programmes,

Homelessness, Local Authority Commissioned Services with the NHS (except where joint funded), Local Authority 0-19 Services

North Central London ICS has committed to a 

strategic review of Community Health services

We agreed in January 2021 that we would conduct a strategic review of Community Health services in 

NCL to address long-standing inconsistencies in service offer, access and outcomes for our population 

across NCL. All NHS funded community health services are in scope (covering children and young 

people, adult and older adult services), except for continuing care services, care home services, 

primary care contract services and Local Authority services.

A review of Mental Health services in NCL is running in parallel, with integrated workstreams, to ensure 

that physical and mental health services are joined-up.

The review is taking a three stage approach:

Aim

• Understand current 

community health services 

in NCL and the variation 

between boroughs 

• Develop the case for 

change

1. Understand the case for 

change 
2. Develop the proposition 3. Implementation

Aim

• Clinically-led design of a new 

core offer for community 

health services, that will be a 

consistent minimum standard 

across NCL 

• Impact assessment to 

understand the implications 

of delivering the core offer 

(benefits and affordability)

Aim

• Engagement with system 

partners to plan for 

implementation and set 

ourselves up to deliver the 

core offer

P
age 20



OFFICIAL

There is a powerful case for changing 

community health services in NCL

5

Inequalities

There are stark inequalities in health needs and outcomes across NCL

Provision

There is significant variation and gaps in service provision depending 

on where you live and this is not aligned to need

Access

The way you access services and how long you wait is also 

dependent on where you live

Spend

Different amounts are spent per head in different boroughs and this 

does not correlate with need 

Children in Barnet wait 20 more weeks than 

children in Camden for initial SLT assessments

Enfield has over twice the prevalence of diabetes 

as Camden; but half the diabetes resource

Camden’s in-reach to care homes is 25% higher 

than Barnet’s, despite Barnet having an older 

population and the most care home beds in NCL

In Haringey £98 per head is spent on community 

health services vs. £192 per head in Islington

P
age 21



OFFICIAL

In order to address this case for change, we co-developed a 

new Community Health core offer; the aim is to provide equity 

and consistency for residents across NCL

6

The purpose of the core offer is to 

address the inconsistency of service 

provision across NCL by setting out 

a commitment to the NCL 

population of the support they can 

expect to have access to 

regardless of their borough of 

residence. 

The core offer will provide clarity to 

the population, clinicians and 

professionals in the system on 

what support is available, when it 

is available and how to access it.  

The core offer contains:

• A description of care functions and services that should be available across NCL and how 

these integrate with the wider health and care system. The components of the core offer 

include services delivering care, as well as coordinating functions which will help 

navigate and integrate services for service users. The core offer describes:

The core offer will be the minimum service standard across NCL. 

The purpose of the core offer is not to set out how providers should organise to deliver care.

Operating hours and out of hours provision

Integration between the care function and other services and agencies

Access to the care function and criteria

Response time for first contact and ongoing contacts (in line with national guidance)

Point of delivery (e.g.. in person, virtual)

Workforce capabilities required

Description of the service, including requirements to meet best practice guidance

P
age 22



OFFICIAL

Implementing the core offer will enable us to 

transform Community Health services across NCL…

7

Working in partnership to deliver the core offer and support 

place-based, joined-up care

Coordinating functions will be in place consistently across 

NCL to support, integrate and navigate care for service users

Integrated ways of working across community health, mental 

health and other agencies will support staff and service users

Digital will be fundamental to improve access to care and 

support and facilitate joined up care

Digital self-help, support and advice 

services for service users

Virtual services and technology to help 

patients manage their conditions

Shared care records and interoperable 

systems

Joint working

Co-location where 

appropriate

Shared culture

Joint training

Collaborative working

Flexibility

Central point of access

Trusted holistic assessment

Care coordination and case management 

Community health 

providers

Acute providers

Voluntary sector

Mental health 

providers

Primary care

Local authorities

Service users and their families/ carers

Services in 

scope of the 

core offer must 

be integrated 

and aligned with 

other agencies 

so pathways are 

seamless

P
age 23



OFFICIAL

Summary of other benefits of delivering the core 

offer for community health

8

• The ICS is committed to investing in preventative and proactive services that support reduced reliance on inpatient care and to avoids the need for admission.  

Delivery of the core  service offers to achieve these benefits will require net investment.

• A financial impact assessment which estimates the cost envelope required to deliver the core offer, including investment and savings, based upon individual 

Borough needs and the cost of delivering a full core offer  is being developed and discussed with Finance colleagues.

• Unlike Mental Health services were there is a stronger correlation between overall population need and spend, Community investment is not proportionate to 

need. 

• Analysis of impact that the  community services core offer could have on acute activity demonstrates the potential for significant reductions in non elective 

(emergency) activity has been prudently calculated  and shared with ICB Directors of Finance 

• The analysis further demonstrates a correlation between increased spend in community services and reduced acute activity as well as improvements in flow.  

More recently, we have seen first hand how acute hospitals with greater access to community provision have been able to more effectively manage surges in 

the pandemic.  

P
age 24



OFFICIAL

Funding the Core Offer

9

Growth MoniesSystem Savings Efficiency
Opportunities of 

Scale

• Growth monies to 

be allocated 

differentially with 

more growth going 

to areas needing 

more investment.

• We seek to reinvest 

savings from 

reducing Non-

Elective activity 

arising from a 

consistent Core 

Offer.

• This effectively 

supports the flow of 

funds from Acute 

Providers to 

Community 

Providers.

• Providers improve 

productivity to meet 

system ‘best in class’ to 

release funds for Core 

Offer. Opportunities on 

staffing and skill mix 

shared for discussions

• Using technology to 

stretch the productivity 

further through such 

processes as remote 

monitoring.

• Providers asked to work 

together to review services 

and agree which could be 

organised at scale i.e. over 

a larger footprint than 1 or 

even 2 Boroughs

Examples:

• New Services; Virtual 

wards

• Large Services; Musclo-

Skeletal Services

• Fragile Services e.g. 

Specialist nursing 

• Children’s Services e.g. 

continuing and palliative 

care 
This is for organisation only. Point of 

delivery remains local

• We would need use a mix of these 5 approaches and for example Providers will need to make productivity savings to reinvest in the core 

service offer.

• Ageing Well funding will support part of the delivery of the community services core offer given the overlaps along with a system 

investment . How much the system can invest is currently being agreed by NCL Directors of Finance

Redistribution of 

Resources

• Providers change 

the footprint over 

which they deliver 

services and/or 

share resources to 

effectively increase 

investment in areas 

that are under-

invested. 

NOTE: Due to Borough level differences our approach to delivering an equitable core offer will vary.

The 5 Approaches to funding the delivery of the Core Services Offer

P
age 25



OFFICIAL
10

The next stage of the Community Services core offer requires the following next steps:

➢ Providers developing a Collaboration Plan and present to CCG for testing and assessment of any risks (see next slides for details)

➢ CCG planning a prioritisation workshop for end of March to agree Year 1 delivery of core services offer 

➢ Refresh of system plans and profiling of delivery based on the above including final confirmation from NHSE of the 2022/23 
allocations for Ageing Well and Virtual Wards. Plans will need to be risk-assessed and triangulated against staffing and activity 
assumptions to ensure they remain feasible within the current profiling of delivery.

➢ Discussions with Borough Primary Care on implications of implementation of delivery of core services offer at Borough 

• Note that a topslice of system/Acute allocations to support delivery of the core offer has already been discussed with ICS CFOs. If the 

refreshed plans cannot address affordability gap the ICS may need to either (a) re-profile delivery of the core offer, (b) request 

further efficiency of the system (e.g. the impact on urgent care pathways or non elective admissions and how funding can be 

redirected to preventative Community Services) or (c) review how further savings can be achieved from the core offer work to 

remain within affordability.

• The 2022/23 contracting approach for core offer will require a timetable for implementation including split of the investment across 

NCL Community Providers. A ‘long stop’ in the contract agreement is expected due to late publication of planning guidance during

COVID. The ICS will need to agree on the mechanisms for ongoing monitoring of core offer cost, activity and outcomes to ensure the 

project remains within affordability and delivers planned clinical benefits.

Next steps for financial planning

P
age 26



OFFICIAL

Opportunities for different ways of working to deliver the core services offer

11

The development of a core consistent and equitable offer for community services has been designed to deliver the following aims:

• A core consistent equitable offer for community provision that could be easily accessed and navigated by other services and patients 

themselves

• Orientate services towards preventative and proactive care working in partnership with Local Authority and Voluntary Sector colleagues

• Reduce the reliance on secondary care services and improve the quality and equality of community services

• Provide the foundation for integrated care and a population health improvement approach to service delivery at place level

• Reduce unnecessary back office and overhead costs associated with fragmentation and duplication

• Ensuring a sustainable and resilience workforce and at scale solutions for fragile services

To deliver these aims there is an ambition to look at different delivery models to test out how far different forms can deliver these aims. The 

next slide gives an example of the benefits of more collaborative working between community providers 

P
age 27



OFFICIAL

There is a range of benefits that could be delivered 

through Community Services provider collaboration

12

Quality

Workforce

Efficiency

Leader-

ship

Improved clinical safety, patient experience and 

pathways

• Simpler to understand clinical pathways, 

delivered consistently

• Access to the same level of clinical care and 

information through one central point of access

• Streamlined working of MDTs

Increased workforce sustainability and 

resilience

• Potential to improve recruitment, retention and 

career pathways

• Shared resources; mitigating staff shortages

• Ability to flex staffing to operational need 

• A blended workforce model has better 

appreciation of population health needs

Economies of scale

• High-cost low incidence work could be more 

effectively managed, providing economies of 

scale for fragile services 

• Financial efficiency

• Help to logistically solve estates challenges for 

hosting teams

Maximise clinical leadership

• Opportunity to bring together clinical and non-

clinical leadership to build the best service

• Opportunity to benefit from the expertise and 

experience of different teams

P
age 28



OFFICIAL

Next steps: Delivering the Core Service Offer into Neighbourhoods 

13

• An earlier slide (9) shows opportunities of scale sets out some of the examples of  which services should be delivered at scale for 

resilience/clinical /workforce or financial reasons.

• However the majority of core services will continue to be provided at a neighbourhood/PCN level as part of integrated working at a 

Borough place level

• As part of understanding the differences in the community services available we have seen that there are different ways of working 

between  community and primary care services locally. Part of that is driven by the differences in community service available but part of it 

is driven through the historic working of community and primary care staff

• As part of starting to move through our planning transition stage we are proposing developing a neighbourhood model that will support the 

delivery of the core services offer in a way that deepens integration and joint working 

• To do this we will need to work with Primary Care and Borough colleagues to agree  a set of principles about how community and primary 

care should work together to create a consistent neighbourhood offer across NCL 

• We can then support further discussions on specific  principles on joint working or enablers e.g. a consistent approach to risk assessment, 

or support for digital technology etc. 

• Having these principles and enablers in place should then allow Borough based Partnerships to then build on and enrich working at a 

local level by bringing in the contributions of mental health, Voluntary groups and public health etc.

P
age 29



OFFICIAL

Next Steps

14

• Dependent on feedback from providers agree how discussions on Collaboration/Services at Scale will be progressed

• Continue work within ICS Financial Framework as part of the development of a financial plan and timetable for implementation and with 
Community Trusts as part of agreeing 2022/23 contracts

• Continue work with Providers to agree how and what of the core service offer can be implemented in 2022/23. This will need to be
captured  at a high level  in contract Service Improvement & Improvement Plans (SDIPs). 

• Finalise outcomes to support measuring impact of delivery core offer as well as monitoring approaches associated with implementation.

• Work with Boroughs and ICP leadership and place based partnerships to help determine implementation locally to achieve a balance
between an NCL wide core and consistent service offer versus local population need.  

• Agreement of the range of local services to be provided in Borough and how these best integrate with other providers e.g. working with 
primary care, voluntary sector or Local Authority services

• Further work on comms and engagement approach to be able to clearly articulate to local people the ‘so what’ of the service reviews and 
be able to set out how these will make a difference to their care and experience and health outcomes locally and update resident and 
user engagement plan 

P
age 30



 

  

NORTH CENTRAL LONDON JOINT HEALTH  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

  

London Boroughs of  

Barnet, Camden,  

Enfield, Haringey and  

Islington  

  

REPORT TITLE  

Work Programme 2021-2022  

  

REPORT OF  

Committee Chair, North Central London Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee  

  

FOR SUBMISSION TO  

  

NORTH CENTRAL LONDON JOINT HEALTH  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

  

DATE  

  

18 March 2022  

  

SUMMARY OF REPORT  

  

This paper reports on the 2021-22 work programme of the North Central London 

Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee and also requests confirmation of the 

reports for the next meeting.    

 Local Government Act 1972 – Access to Information  

  

No documents that require listing have been used in the preparation of this report.  

  

Contact Officer:  

Dominic O’Brien 

Principal Scrutiny Support Officer, Haringey Council 

Tel: 020 8489 5896 

E-mail: dominic.obrien@haringey.gov.uk  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS  

  

The North Central London Joint Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee is asked 

to:  

a) Note the work plan for 2021-22;  

b) Highlight any agenda items for possible inclusion in the 2022-23 work 

programme.  

Page 31 Agenda Item 10

mailto:dominic.obrien@haringey.gov.uk


  

1. Purpose of Report   

  

1.1 This paper outlines the areas that the Committee has chosen to focus on for 2021-

22.  The Committee is asked to note the list of topics. 

 

1.2 This is the final meeting of the JHOSC in 2021/22. The Committee is asked to 

suggest topics for inclusion in the 2022/23 work programme.  

 

1.3 Full details of the JHOSC’s work programme for 2021/22 are listed in Appendix 

A. 

 

2. Terms of Reference  

  

2.1 In considering suitable topics for the JHOSC, the Committee should have regard 

to its Terms of Reference:  

• “To engage with relevant NHS bodies on strategic area wide issues in respect 

of the co-ordination, commissioning and provision of NHS health services 

across the whole of the area of Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey and 

Islington;  

  

• To respond, where appropriate, to any proposals for change to specialised 

NHS services that are commissioned on a cross borough basis and where 

there are comparatively small numbers of patients in each of the participating 

boroughs;  

  

• To respond to any formal consultations on proposals for substantial 

developments or variations in health services across affecting the areas of 

Barnet, Camden, Enfield, Haringey and Islington and to decide whether to use 

the power of referral to the Secretary of State for Health on behalf of Councils 

who have formally agreed to delegate this power to it when responding to 

formal consultations involving all the five boroughs participating in the JHOSC;  

  

• The joint committee will work independently of both the Cabinet and health 

overview and scrutiny committees (HOSCs) of its parent authorities, although 

evidence collected by individual HOSCs may be submitted as evidence to the 

joint committee and considered at its discretion;  

  

• The joint committee will seek to promote joint working where it may provide 

more effective use of health scrutiny and NHS resources and will endeavour to 

avoid duplicating the work of individual HOSCs. As part of this, the joint 

committee may establish sub and working groups as appropriate to consider 

issues of mutual concern provided that this does not duplicate work by 

individual HOSCs; and  

  

• The joint committee will aim to work together in a spirit of co-operation, striving 

to work to a consensual view to the benefit of local people .” 

Page 32



  

3. Appendices  

  

Appendix A –2021/22 NCL JHOSC Work Programme  

  

  

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A – 2020/21 NCL JHOSC work programme 
 

25 June 2021 
 

Item Purpose  Lead Organisation  

GP Services  How the CCG commissions GP services (including commissioning at different levels, 
delegations, CCG responsibilities); 

 Oversight and managing performance and contract issues (including brief description of 
the role of CQC); 

 What is commissioned from practices, PCNS, GP Federations and the developing NCL GP 
Alliance; 

 Digital inclusion and access to services and the right to face-to-face appointments. To 
include an update on the Equality Impact Assessment report commissioned by NCL to 
review the impact of the introduction of digital options. Also a brief overview of patient 
data (what is collected/ shared and how can patients opt out?); 

 Primary Care recovery plans;  

 Barndoc – written update on how services are being provided post-Barndoc. 
 

NCL partners 

Update on AT Medics  How ICS Boards work and transparency is ensured; 

 How residents/Councillors/HOSCs may be alerted to issues at an early stage, can be 
involved and may be able to influence/scrutinise decisions;  

 How standards of care can be maintained in GP services, what would happen if there 
was a fall in standards. 
 

NCL partners 

Mental Health and Community 
Services Review 

 An overview of what the review is aiming to achieve; 

 Scope and timelines; 

 The approach to stakeholder and service user engagement; 

 Specific ask for the JHOSC: to feedback on how can they contribute/support the 
reviews? 

 

NCL partners 

Covid-19 Pandemic Update  Temporary changes to services – what we learned, for example changes to paediatric 
services evaluation. 

NCL partners 

P
age 35



 Collaboration and integrated working – how this provided support during the pandemic 
in areas such as critical care, mutual aid, discharge workforce, the vaccination 
programme. 

 Recovery – particularly elective recovery work and how we are working as a system to 
reduce waiting lists. 

 How our system has developed which has built foundations for a mature ICS. 

 Lessons learnt. 
 

 
01 October 2021 
 

Item Purpose  Lead Organisation  

Digital Inclusion and Health 
Inequalities 

To receive an update on the wider piece on digital inclusion (in secondary care, mental health 
etc) and an update on health inequalities work. 
 

NCL partners 

Mental Health Update To receive an update on Mental Health Services, to include CAMHS and mental health 
provision in schools and how services are commissioned (e.g. across the 5 boroughs v. locally).  
 

NCL partners 

Integrated Care Systems To receive an update on Integrated Care Systems, including how we are moving to shadow 
ICS, governance structures, and how ICS will work with local authorities. 
 

NCL partners 

 
26 November 2021 
 

Item Purpose  Lead Organisation  

Winter Pressures/Ambulance Services  To report on plans to address winter pressure and proposals to develop ambulance hubs.  To 
include data on ambulance handover times  

NCL partners 

Elective Services Recovery  To report on action being taken to address the backlog of elective care, including: 

 North Central London’s designation as an accelerator site; 

 Missing cancer patients; and 

 How health inequalities will be addressed. 

NCL partners 

P
age 36



Fertility Review To receive an update on the Fertility Review. NCL partners 

 
 
28 January 2022 
 

Item Purpose  Lead Organisation  

Royal Free and North Middlesex 
Hospitals Partnership 

Verbal updates from Royal Free and from North Mid.  Royal Free/North 
Mid 

Estates Strategy Update 
 

Update on progress with the Estates Strategy for NCL and changes required as a consequence 
of the establishment of the ICS 

NCL Partners 

Dental Services To consider availability and access to dental services NHS England 

 
18 March 2022  
 

Item Purpose  Lead Organisation  

Mental Health Services Review  
 

To receive an update on the NCL CCG’s Mental Health Services Review.  
 

NCL partners 

Community Health Services Review To receive an update on the NCL CCG’s Community Health Services Review.  NCL partners 

Finance A report to respond to address funding and finance issues. To include Public Health funding 
and potential funding inequalities.  
 

NCL partners 

 
To be arranged 
 

Item Purpose  Lead Organisation  

Royal Free Maternity Services Update on responding to recommendations of CQC report Royal Free 

Children’s Services To focus on periods of transition and to include young people with learning difficulties and 
children in care. 

NCL partners 
 

P
age 37



Screening and Immunisation 
 

NCL partners to confirm focus and scope. NCL partners 
 

Workforce Update 
 

 NCL partners 

Estates Strategy Update 
 

To receive an update on the Estates Strategy including finance issues. This follows on from 
the discussion on the Estates Strategy at the meeting held on 28th Jan 2022.  

NCL partners 

 
 

2021/22 Meeting Dates and Venues 
 

 25 June 2021 - Virtual 

 1 October 2021 - Barnet 

 26 November 2021 - Haringey 

 28 January 2022 – Virtual 

 18 March 2022 - Islington 

P
age 38


	Agenda
	7 MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES REVIEW
	8 COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES REVIEW
	10 WORK PROGRAMME
	APP A - JHOSC work plan 21_22 #6


